
GRAND LEDGE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
319 TAYLOR STREET 

GRAND LEDGE MI 48837 
(517) 622-5256 

MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2012 

6:00 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

200 E. JEFFERSON ST. 

I & II. ROLL CALL - Bruce MacDowell called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
Present:, Mayor Kalmin Smith, Jason Barclay, Terrance Augustine, David Jonas, Chris Fata, Keith Mulder, 
Melanie May, Bob Brown, Rachel Schroeder, and Christine Carter. 
Absent: Karl Glarner, and Ben Cwayna 
Also Present: Economic Development Director Mark Sullivan, Jim Foster, Ziemnick Foster Engineering, 
and Assistant City Administrator Amee King. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. Augustine led the group in the pledge. 

IV. AUDIENCE P ARTICIPATION - Mr. Chuck Pantera, owner of Sun Theater addressed the Board. 
Theaters everywhere are being forced to give up reel film and go to digital. Digital projectors cost 
approximately $64,000. Trying to raise money to help pay for this. Raising ticket prices does not help 
much because the film companies get a percentage of gross ticket sales as payment for using the movie. 
Please consider helping me pay for the projector. Small town theaters are struggling. Eaton Rapids, St. 
Johns and Portland have lost their theaters. Williamston, Charlotte and us are the only ones around besides 
the big theaters. It costs the film companies $1,500 - $2,000 to make a film print. It costs them $150 to 
make a digital print. 

V. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA - Mr. Sullivan wanted to add new business, item III - DNR Grant 
program. Mr. Mulder made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. Mr. Brown supported the motion. 
Motion carries11 to O. 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Mr. Augustine made a motion to approve the minutes of the September 12, 
2012 meeting as presented. Mr. Barclay supported the motion. Motion carries 11 to O. 

VII. TREASURERS REPORT 
1. Payment of bills - Mr. Sullivan reviewed the bills to be paid. Mr. Augustine asked if the payment to 
MGM was $700 or $800. Mr. Sullivan indicated the payment should be $700. Ms. May asked if the 
payment for cleanup ofgraffiti was for under the bridge? Mr. Sullivan indicated that it was. Mr. Augustine 
made a motion to pay the bills in the amount of$9,959.55 ($100 less for MGM). Ms. May supported the 
motion. Motion carries 11 to O. 

Ms. Carter asked what the role of the Finance Committees is going to be? Mr. Sullivan indicated that a 
meeting will be scheduled and that will be the first item of business, to come up with goals for the 
Committee. Ms. Carter indicated that she would prefer to see the bills more than 5 minutes before meeting. 
Mrs. King will set up a meeting of the Finance Committee. 

2. Financial Statement - Mr. Sullivan reviewed the fmancial statements. There is a prior year tax 
adjustment on the fmancial statement. Funds from taxes are coming in. The fund balance is roughly 
$570,000. The LED lighting can be paid for out of fund balance or fmanced. Staff contacted another 
company to request a quote for LED lighting, but found out they could not do retrofits. 

VIII. Committee Reports 



1. Landscape Committee - Mr. Sullivan indicated that the Landscape Committee met today. The task was 
to put together a contract for MGM services. The main discussion at the meeting was around the weed 
control. It was determined that Mr. Edmonds did not have a commercial license to apply herbicides. Mr. 
Edmonds acknowledged that and is in the process of getting the license. Mr. Augustine suggested that the 
maintenance and snow plowing be with one contractor. The conclusions ofthe meeting were as follows: 1. 
Mr. Edmunds would provide documentation ofa license to use herbicides prior to the need to use them next 
spring. 2. The Committee will, with Mr. Edmunds, set guidelines for the use ofherbicides, including time 
and areas not to use them. 3. The Committee, along with Mr. Edmunds, will establish a test area where we 
can try different methods ofweed control. The Committee will analyze the effectiveness and cost (time and 
material) of different methods. The Committee decided to recommend to the Board of Directors the 
approval for a one year contract with MGM Services, LLC, based on the above conditions. Mr. Sullivan 
further indicated that we do not have time to look at one contractor this year, since time is short to get a 
snow plow contract in place. Mr. Jonas indicated he had a concern about who are the professionals using 
herbicide? Maybe Dukes spraying who knows more about this. Mr. Sullivan indicated that Chad Brunton 
from the City staff could help us out and educate us more on this subject. We have to do our home work 
too. I feel we are getting a good deal with the work he is doing. Ms. Schroeder indicated that Mr. Edmunds 
is going to pursue his license which means he will get the training that is needed. Mr. Augustine indicated 
that we should not get involved in what Mr. Edmunds is doing, however, we should hire a professional who 
knows what they are doing. Mr. Edmunds indicated to staff that he didn't know he needed a license to 
apply herbicides. Mr. Augustine feels we should put this contract out to bid, and this may be a great time to 
combine the contract with snow plowing as well. Mr. Jonas indicated that he thinks we're getting our 
money's worth for $700 a month. Mr. Brown asked ifthere was a huge dissatisfaction with the work being 
done. Mr. Sullivan indicated that we could hire a consultant to tell us what we should do. Mr. Brown added 
that Mr. Bob Rank and Mr. Al Almy, who both taught at Lansing Community College, produced a manual 
that got national awards for landscaping. Mr. Jonas indicated that last year we were going to put this 
contract out for bid, but extended the MGM contract. Mr. Sullivan added that we have combined several 
things into one contract, the pots, mulching, and maintenance. Ms. Schroeder indicated she would like to 
do a one year contract. Mr. Mulder indicated he would like to bid it out, adding Mr. Edmunds does a great 
job, but its our job to bid contracts out. Mr. Barclay added that a month ago this board voted to move 
forward with the MGM contract and asked the Landscape Committee to negotiate it and bring it back to the 
board. This item will be acted on later in the meeting. 

IX. Old Business 
1. LED Upgrade - Mr. Sullivan indicated that the lights have been delivered. Its up to the Board on how 
to pay for them. We did contact a bank and found out we could get around a 3% interest rate on financing. 
City Treasurer, Chuck Remenar, feels we should pay for them outright. There is a third option of inter-fund 
borrowing. Mr. Jonas asked ifwe take $61,000 out of cash would it bring the fund balance too low? Mr. 
Sullivan indicated that he didn't feel there was much difference either way. Ms. Carter would like to 
recommend the authority to the Finance Committee review this. Mr. Augustine indicated that he feels we 
should just pay for it outright. Ifthere is a need for money in the future we can borrow then. Mr. Brown 
indicated that he did not want to give authority to three people and would like the board to decide. Mr. 
Mulder indicated that he felt we should pay for the lights instead of financing. The Finance Committee 
could review these type of things in the future. Mr. Mulder moved to approve the payments ofthe LED 
lights to be paid out of fund balance. Mr. Augustine supported the motion. A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion carries 11 to O. 

Mr. Barclay - yes Ms. Carter - yes Mr. Mulder - yes 
Mr. Augustine - yes Ms. May -yes Mr. Fata - yes 
Mr. Jonas - yes Mr. Brown - yes Mayor Smith - yes 
Ms. Schroder - yes Mr. MacDowell - yes 

2. Signage Update - Mr. Sullivan indicated that he has not received the full scale model from Lenny, from 
Signs by Lenny. 



3. Repair of Light Pole Bases - Update Mr. Sullivan showed the board the parts that are needed to repair 
the light poles. $34 per light plus labor. Craig from Craig Electric will be repairing the poles. They will 
start with the poles that he paints the most frequently since they get the most salt damage. Work has 
already began. 

X. 	 New Business 

1. Snow Removal Contract - Mr. Sullivan reviewed the information he compiled on snow plowing bids. 
Took an average of the last several years and used 35 times to salt and 14 times to plow to analyze bids. If 
the snow plowing will only be 1-4 inches McLean is the low bidder. If the plowing is 4-7 inches, HTA is 
the low bidder. McLean is the lowest on salt applications. Mr. Augustine indicated that ifyou look at the 
percentages McLean is the lowest bidder and would recommend moving forward with them. Mayor Smith 
indicated that there is no information on how many times the snow is above or below 4 inches. Mr. Mulder 
indicated that the way to save money is on salting since there is more of that than plowing. Mr. Sullivan 
indicated that HTA has had the contract for 6 or 7 years. They provide us with weather information with 
our bill. Mr. Brown moved to grant the snow plowing contract to HTA for I - 3 years. Mr. Barclay 
supported the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Motion carries 10 to 1. 

Ms. Schroder - yes Mr. Barclay - yes Ms. Carter - yes 

Mr. Mulder - yes Mr. Augustine - yes Ms. May-yes 

Mr. Fata-no Mr. Jonas - yes Mr. Brown - yes 

Mayor Smith - yes Mr. MacDowell - yes 


2. Landscape Maintenance Contract - Mr. Augustine made a motion to put the lanscape services 
contract out for bid. Ms. May supported the motion. Mr. Sullivan indicated that the MGM contract will 
run out at the end ofNovember. Mr. Brown indicated that he thought the Committee with was 
recommending approving a contract with MGM Services? Mr. Sullivan indicated that yes that was the 
Committee's recommendation with one caveat. Motion carries 6 to 5. 

3. DNR Grant Program - Mr. Jonas indicated that he provided information to the Board that there is a 
DNR grant program to address dam removals and critical maintenance. There are $2 million available. 
Application deadline is December 1st. The applicant has to cover 10% This item will be discussed at the 
joint planning committee also. Mr. Brown indicated that the grants are heavily weighted toward dam 
removal. 

XI. 	 Directors Comments - Mr. Sullivan deferred to Jim Foster. Mr. Foster indicated he is continuing work on 
the boat launch project. The grant funding has slowed at the State level, which has slowed us down. 
Survey work is complete and preliminary work is done. We have met with the Park & Recreation 
Commission and Planning Commission to show them the preliminary drawing. The plan is to widen the 
driveway to 24 feet at RiverlFranklin Streets, and to widen the launch area to 18 feet. We decided we 
didn't want to co-mingle fishing/motor boat and kayaks. There is a natural cut out in the bank up stream a 
little bit, kind of an eroded area where we will do a reduced slope, natural bottom where kayaks can go in 
there. There is a desire for fishing piers. There will be one down stream so as to reduce hooking boats. 
There will be 4 parking spots for boat/trailer. We have added 4 parking spots for car/trucks next to the 
house at the end of river. There will be a connector trail into the riverwalk for continuity in the trail system. 
There will be a porta potty down there on a concrete pad, a picnic table, a drinking fountain, and may be a 
bench and grill pit. We will get review documents to the Park & Recreation Commission and then go to 
DNR for fmal review. We will apply for permits in the winter and work on it in the late spring and summer. 
We may need to lower the river to do this work. We are working with the DNR on the grade of the launch 
to help out the Chamberlains with their boat. The fire hydrant will be relocated, not sure where yet. The 
couple that lives on River Street next to the launch do not have any issues, however they are requesting a 
living screen to be put up there, or they may move. Ms. Carter suggested putting in a restroom with a sink. 



Members Comments - Mr. Jonas requested a new Committee list. Is there any way the contractors 
working on the non motorized pathway could accommodate scooters and wheel chairs until it gets done? 
Mayor Smith will check into that. 

Mr. Mulder indicated that Mr. Bayless has sent out an RFP for the master plan for Jaycee Park. 


Ms. May asked if there is a dog park in the area or could that be built into the Jaycee Park plans?? 


Mr. Brown indicated that the Mayors information on the walkway was appreciated. 


Mayor Smith indicated that the road construction has to be done by the 12th and there is very little left to 

complete. It all went very smoothly. There was one family that complained a lot and a lot of families that 
complained about that family constantly. The widewalk has slowed due to companies not moving 
infrastructure. We have no clue when the McDonalds easement will come in. 

Ms. May indicated that there are 36 more days until the new McDonalds opens up. 

XIL 	 ADJOURN - Mr. Mulder made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:54 p.m. Mr. Fata supported the 
motion. Motion carries lIto O. 

Minutes recorded and transcribed by Amee King 

Robert Brown, Secretary 	 Date Minutes Approved 


